
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DECEMBER 1, 2020 
 

Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 
 

Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

Treasurer 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

Trustees 
JOHN P. NEWMAN II 
GLORIA PETERSON 
DEBBIE SWANSON 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 



   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE•YPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO • CLERK HEATHER JARRELL ROE • TREASURER STAN 
ELDRIDGE TRUSTEES: JOHN P. NEWMAN II • GLORIA PETERSON • DEBBIE SWANSON • 
JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

 
 

THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED ELECTRONICALLY. PLEASE USE THE 
INSTRUCTIONS BELOW OR VISIT YTOWN.ORG 

                                 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
       TUESDAY, DECEMBER 1, 2020 

    7:00 P.M. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARING  

 
A. 7:00PM – RESOLUTION 2020-33, CREATION OF NEIGHBORHOOD STREETLIGHT 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #220 LATHERS ST. 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
A. MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR MEETING  

 
B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 

 
1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR DECEMBER 1, 2020 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$319,909.92 
 

6. ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. REQUEST TO APPROVE AMENDMENT TO THE SUBAWARD OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL 

ASSISTANCE WITH WASHTENAW COUNTY FOR THE COMMUNITY CENTER 
FLOORING PROJECT 
  

2. REQUEST TO APPROVE AMENDMENT TO THE SUBAWARD OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL 
ASSISTANCE WITH WASHTENAW COUNTY FOR THE SCHOONER COVE BUS STOP  

 
3. RESOLUTION 2020-34, 2021 BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS APPOINTMENTS AND 

REAPPOINTMENTS 
 

4. BUDGET AMENDMENT #15 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
1. DISCUSSION ON OWNERS DAM SAFETY PROGRAM AUDIT REPORT 
 
BOARD MEMBER UPDATES 



 
 
 

 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Public Meeting Notice 

Board of Trustees Work Session and Regular Meeting 
December 1, 2020 7:00pm 

 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees will 
hold a Regular Meeting scheduled for December 1, 2020 at 7:00pm. This meeting will 
be conducted virtually (online and/or by phone), due to health concerns surrounding 
Coronavirus/COVID-19 approved under SB 1108. 
 
Public comment will be handled by the “Raise Hand” method as instructed below within 
Participant Controls. 
 
To comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), Any citizen requesting 
accommodation to attend this meeting, and/or to obtain this notice in alternate formats, 
please contact Clerk’s Office at 734-484-4700, at least two business days prior to the 
meeting. 

 
Meeting Information: 

 
Hi there, 
 
You are invited to a Zoom webinar. 
When: Dec 1, 2020 07:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Topic: Township Board of Trustees Regular Meeting December 1, 2020 
 
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://ytown.zoom.us/j/92848264684 
Or iPhone one-tap :  
    US: +19292056099,,92848264684#  or +13017158592,,92848264684#  
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
        US: +1 929 205 6099  or +1 301 715 8592  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 253 215 
8782  or +1 346 248 7799  
Webinar ID: 928 4826 4684 
    International numbers available: https://ytown.zoom.us/u/abB3T9VSEd 
 

 
 
 

Clerk’s Office 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River 
Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 484-4700 

Fax:  (734) 484-5156 

Supervisor 
  BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

Treasurer 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

Trustees 
JOHN P. NEWMAN, II 
GLORIA PETERSON 
DEBBIE SWANSON 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 



Zoom Instructions for Participants 

To join the conference by phone: 

1. On your phone, dial the teleconferencing number provided above.

2. Enter the Meeting ID number (also provided above) when prompted using your
touch- tone (DTMF) keypad.

Before a videoconference: 

1. You will need a computer, tablet, or smartphone with speaker or headphones.
You will have the opportunity to check your audio immediately upon joining a
meeting.

2. Details, phone numbers, and links to videoconference or conference call is
provided below. The details include a link to “Join via computer” as well as phone
numbers for a conference call option. It will also include the 9-digit Meeting ID.

To join the videoconference: 

1. At the start time of your meeting, enter the link to join via computer. You may be
instructed to download the Zoom application.

2. You have an opportunity to test your audio at this point by clicking on “Test
Computer Audio.” Once you are satisfied that your audio works, click on “Join
audio by computer.”

You may also join a meeting without the link by going to join.zoom.us on any browser
and entering the Meeting ID provided.

If you are having trouble hearing the meeting, you can join via telephone while
remaining on the video conference:

1. On your phone, dial the teleconferencing number.

2. Enter the Meeting ID number (also provided above) when prompted using your
touch- tone (DTMF) keypad.

3. If you have already joined the meeting via computer, you will have the option to
enter your 2- digit participant ID to be associated with your computer.



Participant controls in the lower left corner of the Zoom screen: 
 

 
 
Using the icons in the lower left corner of the Zoom screen, you can: 
 
• Mute/Unmute your microphone (far left) 
• Turn on/off camera (“Start/Stop Video”) 
• Invite other participants 
• View Participant list – opens a pop-out screen that includes a “Raise Hand” icon 

that you may use to raise a virtual hand during Call to the Public 
• Change your screen name that is seen in the participant list and video window 
• Share your screen 
 
Somewhere (usually upper right corner on your computer screen) on your Zoom screen 
you will also see a choice to toggle between “speaker” and “gallery” view. “Speaker 
view” shows the active speaker. “Gallery view” tiles all of the meeting participants. 
 
 
 
 
If you have any further questions or concerns, please call 734-484-4700 or email Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe at hjarrellroe@ytown.org or Deputy Clerk Lisa Stanfield at 
lstanfield@ytown.org. 

mailto:hjarrellroe@ytown.org
mailto:lstanfield@ytown.org


PUBLIC HEARING 

A. 7:00PM – RESOLUTION 2020-33, CREATION OF STREETLIGHT SPECIAL
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #220 LATHERS ST.



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-33 
 

Creation of Streetlight Special Assessment District  
#220 Lathers St 

 
WHEREAS, on or about August 28, 2020, the Township Clerk received notice of 
approval from the Ypsilanti Township Assessors office of a petition signed by 
52.94% of homeowners from Lathers St., consisting of 17 parcels, in Ypsilanti 
Township requesting the creation of special assessment district #220 for the 
purpose of defraying said cost of street lighting by special assessments against 
the property especially benefited; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk requested of Detroit Edison, proposed plans 
describing the street lighting improvement and the location of said improvements 
with an estimate of said costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, on October 8, 2020 Brandon Faron of Detroit Edison Community 
Lighting Group prepared and submitted proposed plans to install seven (7) street 
lights on Lathers St., Ypsilanti Township, consisting of 17 parcels, which said plans 
included, inter alia, the installation of seven (7) “stock, 11’ 6”, black fiberglass 
posts on concrete foundations with stock 39w LED Basic Granville 
Luminaries” with the cost of said improvements being approximately: 
 

Total Estimate Construction Cost: ................................... $30,709.01 
Total Lamp Charge For Three (3) Years: ............................ $5,241.60 
Contribution (Cost minus 3 years revenue): ................... $25,467.41 
Total Annual Lamp Charges: .............................................. $1,747.20 

 
WHEREAS, on October 16, 2020 the Township Clerk received notification from 
the Township Assessor that the cost of providing street lights for Lathers St., 
Ypsilanti Township, consisting of 17 parcels, which said plans included, inter alia, 
the installation of seven (7) “stock, 11’ 6”, black fiberglass posts on concrete 
foundations with stock 39w LED Basic Granville Luminaries”  will be $252.59 
per parcel for a 10-year period; thereafter, said costs shall be estimated at $102.78 
per parcel for street lighting, based on general benefit; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has given notice to each record owner of or party 
in interest in property to be assessed, by first class mail, addressed to the record 
owner or party in interest at the address shown on the tax records, at least 10 (ten) 
days before the December 1, 2020 public hearing, setting forth the district affected 
in said request, place and purpose of said public hearing to allow any interested 
person an opportunity to voice any objection which may be offered against creating 
said district; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has also published in a newspaper of general 
circulation the time, place and purpose of said public hearing and the district 
affected thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, on December 1, 2020, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti held a public 
hearing to hear any objections which may be offered against amending said 
special assessment district. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
determines that the petitions filed by the Lathers St., consisting of 17 parcels, is 
sufficient for all purposes set forth pursuant to Act 188 of the Public Acts of 1954, 
as amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a special assessment district #220 be created 
for the purpose of providing seven streetlights for Lathers St., consisting of 17 
parcels. 
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board accepts the plans and 
estimate of costs as presented by Detroit Edison for Lathers St., consisting of 17 
parcels, which said plans included, inter alia, the installation of two (2) “stock, 11’ 
6”, black fiberglass posts on concrete foundations with stock 39w LED Basic 
Granville Luminaries” will be 252.59 per parcel for a 10-year period; thereafter, 
said costs shall be estimated at $102.78 per parcel for street lighting, based on 
general benefit. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Supervisor shall make a special 
assessment upon all the lands and premises contained herein to defray the 
expenses of lighting said streets. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board shall hereinafter annually 
determine on or before September 30 of each year, the amount to be assessed in 
said district for lighting said streets and shall direct the Township Assessor to levy 
such amounts therein. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that when the special assessment roll has been 
prepared and filed in the office of the Township Clerk, before said assessment roll 
has been confirmed, the Township Board shall appoint a time and place when it 
will meet, review and hear any objections to the assessment roll. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board shall give notice of said 
hearing and filing of the assessment roll in the manner prescribed by statute. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
                                            

 
 
 
 















 

 

 

 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
November 20, 2020 
 
Name 
Address 
City, State Zip   
 
 
Re:   Public Hearing Scheduled for Tuesday, December 1, 2020 at Approximately 7:00pm for the 

Creation of Streetlight Special Assessment District #220 for Lathers St. 
 
Dear Property Owners: 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees set a public hearing to consider the request for the 
creation of streetlight special assessment district #220 Lathers St. for the installation of seven (7) streetlights. 
 
This will include your property located at:  Address 

Parcel    
 

              
The public hearing will be held on Tuesday, December 1, 2020 at approximately 7:00p.m. in a virtual 
manner. Attached are directions to join the meeting via Zoom. Public comments may also be sent via 
email to heatherjarrellroe@ytown.org, or lstanfield@ytown.org or by postal mail and will be read at the 
hearing. See below for information. 
 
The Detroit Edison lamp layout for the proposed new streetlights is located on the back of this letter.  
 
Installation charges for the seven (7) streetlights is $25,467.41. This cost is among the seventeen (17) parcels 
and is spread over a ten (10) year period and equals $149.81 per parcel. DTE has fixed the annual lamp 
charges for the first three (3) years, per agreement to $1,747.20. This cost is divided among the seventeen (17) 
parcels and equals $102.78 per parcel, per year. After the third year, the costs will reflect the current rates set 
by DTE, as well as current electrical usage over the year.  
 
Total estimated annual costs for the additional streetlights would be $252.59 per parcel, per year, after 
10 years the estimated costs would drop to $102.78 per year. 
 
To Legally Protest the Streetlight Special Assessment: 
An owner or party in interest, or his or her agent, may appear in person at the hearing to protest the special 
assessment in person, or may file his or her appearance and protest by letter before the hearing, and in that 
event, personal appearance shall not be required. The owner or any person having an interest in the real 
property who protests in writing at or before the hearing may file a written appeal of the special assessment 
with the State Tax Tribunal within 30 days after the special assessment roll is confirmed. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact my office. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk        Lisa Stanfield, Deputy Clerk 
 
lrs 
 
cc:  File 

Clerk’s Office 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive  
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484-4700 
Fax:  (734) 484-5156 

Supervisor 
  BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

Treasurer 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

Trustees 
JOHN P. NEWMAN, II 
GLORIA PETERSON 
DEBBIE SWANSON 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

mailto:heatherjarrellroe@ytown.org
mailto:lstanfield@ytown.org














 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
 

Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m. on a 
Zoom Virtual Board meeting. Supervisor Stumbo stated because this meeting is on 
Zoom we would not be able to do The Pledge of Allegiance or a moment of silent 
prayer.  
 
Members Present:  Supervisor Stumbo, Clerk Lovejoy Roe,  
                                         Treasurer Doe 
                                         Trustees: Stan Eldridge, Heather Jarrell Roe, 
                                                          Jimmie Wilson (arrived at 7:30pm) 
                                          
Members Absent:  Trustee Ross-Williams 
                    
Legal Counsel:   Wm. Douglas Winters 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. RESOLUTION 2020-26, 2021 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 
(PUBLIC HEARING SET AT THE OCTOBER 20, 2020 REGULAR MEETING) 

 
Javonna Neel, Accounting Director went over Resolution the 2020-26, 2021 Fiscal 
Year Budget. She said we increased our taxable values by 3% and the revenues 
increased by 2.5%. She said they had a heavy rollback of .9972 which she said you 
will see on the L-4029 that was approved in June 2020. She said a lot of our 
millages will be ending with our 2020 tax rolls which is our 2021 revenues. Ms. 
Neel stated that we will have to go out in 2021 to try and get our tax millages back. 
She said wages and fringes are our biggest expenses. She said the contracts for 14B 
Court, Teamsters, and AFSCME Unions will all expire on December 31, 2020. She 
said they did not put wage increases for union positions or non-union positions. 
Ms. Neel stated that Supervisor Stumbo said she would like to consider future 
bonuses for managers who have gone above and beyond. She said the fire contract 
gives a 2.5% increase in wages for 2021. She said the elected officials increases are 
set by the board and the new board will determine those wages. She said 
healthcare insurance decreased by .51% and vision increased by 15%. She said our 
disability, life insurance, and dental stayed the same. She said MERS covers all our 
general employees that are full time but not fire fighters and she said it increased 
by 18.9%. Ms. Neel stated we have two different tiers for MERS. She said 
employees hired up to December 31, 2013 were one tier and we pay a per 
employee rate on them. She said that has gone up from $15,500.00 per employee 
to $21,375.00 per employee. She said second tier is those employed after January 
1, 2014 decreased from 5.16% to 4.27% and she said that is what is paid based on 
their wages. Ms. Neel stated the Fund ratio decreased to 71%. She said another 
large expense is the retirement health benefits but it is decreasing since the 2nd 
tiered employees are not eligible for health benefits when they retire. She said 
State Shared Revenue is one of the largest amounts they get. She said due to the 
Pandemic it has decreased but she said not as bad as she thought. She said in the 
General Fund for the Revenues she said they have a projected 2.4% increase. She 
said for the Appropriations the biggest one would be the debt obligation. She said 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 2 
 
they transfer 50% of the road bond that is paid in the BSR II Fund she said they do 
half of that. She said they transfer $315,000.00 which is the principal and interest 
over to the BSR II which will pay the whole bond debt for the year. Ms. Neel said 
this year they will be transferring approximately $348,855.00 to the 14B District 
Court due to the short fall related to the Pandemic. She said the other expenditure 
was for the Community Economic Development position that they put back into 
the budget. She said all the Capital Expenditures over $7,500.00 will come back to 
the Board for approval.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo declared the Public Hearing opened at 7:20PM. 
 
JoAnn McCollum, Township Resident asked when the appropriations for the road 
bond debt obligation ends. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated it ended in 2022. 
 
Ms. McCollum asked if there would be a millage for waste management for the 
increase. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that the millage expires at the end of the year and funds 
the 2021 budget. She said they discussed at the last meeting getting a committee 
together to go over what is expiring and come up with suggestions. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo declared the Public Hearing closed at 7:22PM. 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Wilson to 
Approve Resolution 2020-26, 2021 Fiscal Year Budget (Public Hearing Set at the 
October 20, 2020 Regular Meeting) (see attached). 
 
Supervisor Stumbo thanked Debbie Graham and Tammie Keen for their help in 
preparing the budget. She stated they were both retiring on November 25, 2020. 
 
Doe…………..…Yes          Lovejoy Roe………..…Yes       Jarrell Roe………..…….Yes 
Wilson…………Yes          Eldridge…………………Yes       Stumbo…………………..Yes 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
JoAnn McCollum, Township Resident stated she would like the board to adopt a 
policy on Ethics and a policy on Conflict of Interest. She said she would continue to 
ask for it with the new board. 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 3 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 6, 2020 WORK SESSION                              
(TABLED AT THE OCTOBER 20, 2020 REGULAR MEETING) 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to remove 
the Minutes of the October 6, 2020 Work Session from Table. 
 
Doe…………..…Yes          Lovejoy Roe………..…Yes       Jarrell Roe………..…….Yes 
Wilson…………Yes          Eldridge…………………Yes       Stumbo…………………..Yes 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Minutes of the October 6, 2020 Work session. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

B. MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 20,2020 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR 
MEETING 
 

C. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 
1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR NOVEMBER 3, 2020 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$668,311.56 

D. TREASURER’S REPORT OCTOBER 2020 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 
Attorney Winters thanked the Township for choosing his firm as their legal counsel.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 4 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE, RECYCLING AND 
YARD WASTE AGREEMENT WITH WASTE MANAGEMENT                      
(1ST READING HELD AT THE AUGUST 18, 2020 REGULAR MEETING)    

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve the Municipal Solid Waste, Recycling and Yard Waste Agreement with 
Waste Management (1st Reading Held at the August 18, 2020 Regular Meeting) 
(see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. RESOLUTION 2020-27, APPROVAL OF THE SRF CONTRACT AND 
AUTHORIZING NOTICE FOR YCUA WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
IMPROVEMENTS SRF BOND SALE (2021 2ND QUARTER SRF – PROJECT 
NO. 5678-01)  

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve Resolution 2020-27, Approval of the SRF Contract and Authorizing 
Notice for YCUA Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements SRF Bond Sale (2021 
2nd Quarter SRF – Project No. 5678-01)(see attached). 
 
Tom Colis stated this was similar to the improvements that they made in 2019 that 
benefits both the Township and the City of Ypsilanti. He said this contract will allow 
YCUA to issue Bonds to help with the improvements to the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant. He said the current estimate is not to exceed $6,000,000.00. 
 
Jeff Castro, YCUA Director, explained the loans for this project. 
 
Scott Westover, explained the work that would be done in this project. 
 
Doe…………..…Yes          Lovejoy Roe………..…Yes       Jarrell Roe………..……Yes 
Wilson…………Yes          Eldridge…………………Yes       Stumbo…………………..Yes 
 
The motion was carried unanimously. 
 

2. REQUEST TO APPROVE CRYSTAL POND MINOR SITE PLAN 
AMENDMENT     

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve Request to Approve Crystal Pond Minor Site Plan Amendment.   
 
Jason Iacoangeli, Planning Director, stated that Lombardo Homes are asking for an 
amendment to their current plan in order to add an additional five feet to the 
triplex units. He said they were also asking for some minor changes to the 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 5 
 
buildings. He said they are recommending the minor change for these condos 
which changes the kitchen by 5 feet. 
 
The motion was carried unanimously. 
                                                                                                                                                                                           

3. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A GRANT FROM THE STATE COURT 
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE MICHIGAN DRUG COURT GRANT PROGRAM 
FOR 2020 IN THE AMOUNT OF $146,000.00 FOR THE 14B COURT’S 
DRUG COURT DOCKET          

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to 
Approve the Grant From the State Court Administrative Office Michigan Drug 
Court Grant Program for 2020 in the Amount of $146,000.00 for the 14B Court’s 
Drug Court Docket (see attached).  
 
Magistrate Nelson stated this is the sixth year for the drug court and we are the 
only court in the county that has a drug court. 
 
The motion was carried unanimously. 
 

4. REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT THE CORONAVIRUS 
EMERGENCY SUPPLEMENTAL FUNDING GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$22,449.60 AND TO APPROVE THE GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE 
MICHIGAN STATE POLICE      

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to Approve 
Request for Authorization to Accept the Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental 
Funding Grant in the Amount of $22,449.60 and to Approve the Grant Agreement 
with the Michigan State Police (see attached).    
 
Magistrate Nelson stated this is most likely a one-time funding opportunity. He said 
it will help purchase laptop computers for people who work remotely, upgrades to 
some of our computer systems to improve efficiencies for defendants coming to 
the court remotely. He said there’s an on line system that defendants can receive 
text messages or emails reminding them of court dates and payment schedules. He 
said it would make the parking lot a Wi-Fi hotspot so if people are required to 
come to court via video and they don’t have that service at home they can come 
here and stay in their car and it won’t use their cell phone data.    
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

5. REQUEST TO APPROVE ADOPTING THE ANNUAL EXEMPTION OPTION 
AS SET FORTH IN 2011 PUBLIC ACT 152, THE PUBLICLY FUNDED 
HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTION ACT        

     
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Adopting the Annual Exemption Option as set Forth in 2011 Public Act 
152, the Publicly Funded Health Insurance Contribution Act. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 6 
 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. REQUEST TO APPROVE ADDENDUMS FOR DIVISIONS #81040110 AND 
#81040112 TO THE MERS DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN ADOPTION 
AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZE HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER KAREN 
WALLIN TO SIGN AND SUBMIT THE ADDENDUMS     

 
A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Addendums for Division #81040110 and #81040112 to the MERS 
Defined Benefit Plan Adoption Agreement and Authorize Human Resources 
Manager Karen Wallin to Sign and Submit the Addendums. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

7. REQUEST TO AUTHORIZE RATE INCREASE FOR 2021 SEASON AT GREEN 
OAKS GOLF COURSE             

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Request to Authorize Rate Increase for 2021 Season at Green Oaks Golf 
Course.   
 
Kirk Sherwood, Golf Course Director changed the rates after checking out rates at 
other area golf courses. He said all the liquor license paperwork has been approved 
and are waiting for the inspector.     
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

8. REQUEST TO AUTHORIZE THE CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION 
SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR THE COMMUNITY CENTER FLOORING 
PROJECT WITH SPICER GROUP IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,300.00 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #212-970-000-976-008          

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve the Request to Authorize the Construction Administration Services 
Agreement for the Community Center Flooring Project with Spicer Group in the 
Amount of $7,300.00 Budgeted in Line Item #212-970-000-976-008 (see 
attached). 
 
Mike Hoffmeister, Residential Services Director stated they received a bid for this 
project after going out three times. He said we will be reimbursed for Spicer Group 
services by CDBG funding when it is completed. He said it is scheduled to begin in 
January 18, 2021. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe said she was so excited about this project. She said she thought 
this would be a huge improvement to our community. She asked if the 
construction would interrupt anything going on at the community center. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 7 
 
Mike Hoffmeister stated he would not know what restrictions there would be at 
the time of installation but has talked with staff and they will work around 
whatever schedule they have in order to get this project completed. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

9. REQUEST TO AUTHORIZE CIRCUIT COURT LITIGATION TO ABATE 
PUBLIC NUISANCES LOCATED AT 860 TWIN TOWERS STREET AND 1453 
EAST MICHIGAN AVENUE BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-
023             

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Wilson to Authorize 
Circuit Court Litigation to Abate Public Nuisances Located at 860 Twin Towers 
Street and 1453 East Michigan Avenue Budgeted in Line Item #101-950-000-801-
023.                               
 
Mike Radzik, OCS Director explained the properties in this request. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

10.  REQUEST TO AUTHORIZE ADDITIONAL MISCELLANEOUS 
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 
EMPLOYEES AND ELECTED OFFICIALS FOR COVERAGE FOR CLAIMS 
WITHOUT MONETARY DAMAGES   

 
A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Trustee Wilson to Table. 
 
Doe…………..…Yes          Lovejoy Roe………..…Yes       Eldridge………..……Yes 
Wilson…………Yes          Jarrell Roe………………Yes      Stumbo……….……..Yes 
 
The motion carried unanimously.  
 

11.  REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO SELL OR AUCTION EXCESS TOWNSHIP 
VEHICLES  

 
A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Authorization to Sell or Auction Excess Township Vehicles. 
 
The motion carried unanimously.  
 

12.  REQUEST TO APPROVE A CONTRACT WITH THE WASHTENAW COUNTY 
WATER RESOURCE COMMISSIONER FOR VERMIN MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,500.00 PER MONTH BUDGETED IN 
LINE ITEM #101-956-000-801-000 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Request to Approve a Contract with the Washtenaw County Water 
Resource Commissioner for Vermin Management Services in the Amount of 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 8 
 
$7,500.00 per Month Budgeted in Line Item #101-956-000-801-000 (see 
attached). 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated the vermin are moving through the storm drains and 
now this service will bait the storm drains to stop the movement. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe stated they have heard from residents who have had problems 
with the vermin. She said she didn’t realize the vermin moved through the storm 
drains and thanked Evan Pratt with helping us eliminate this problem. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

13.  BUDGET AMENDMENT #14 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve Budget Amendment #14 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
AUTHORIZATION AND BIDS 
 

1. REQUEST TO SEEK SEALED BIDS FOR THE RENOVATION OF THE CIVIC 
CENTER 2ND FLOOR BATHROOM 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Request to Seek Sealed Bids for the Renovation of the Civic Center 2nd 
Floor Bathroom. 
 
Mike Hoffmeister, Residential Services Director explained the renovation for the 
2nd floor bathroom at the Civic Center. He said the bathroom is not easily 
assessable and this renovation will make it ADA compliant. He said they received 
additional funding that will help with the completion of this project. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. REQUEST TO SEEK PROPOSALS FOR THE PRINTING OF A TOWNSHIP 
MAGAZINE 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Wilson to 
Approve Request to Seek Proposals for the Printing of a Township Magazine. 
 
Mike Hoffmeister stated that the Residential Services staff has put this together 
with a marketing interest in mind. He said they believe that recreation and golf as 
well as other township services would be beneficial for residents if they receive this 
information in a magazine delivered to their home. He said the helpful handbook is 
a tool that is printed yearly and they would incorporate that into a three or four 
times a year publication updating information as needed. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 9 
 
Trustee Eldridge would like this to come back to the board before moving forward. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated she had seen other communities publishing similar 
magazines. She said she was looking forward to seeing what comes next. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. REQUEST TO AWARD THE LOW BID FOR THE FLOORING REPLACEMENT 
AT THE COMMUNITY CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF $144,900.00 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #212-970-000-976-008 AND TO AUTHORIZE 
SIGNING OF THE CONTRACT PENDING ATTORNEY APPROVAL 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Request to Award the Low Bid for the Flooring Replacement at the 
Community Center in the Amount of $144,900.00 Budgeted in Line Item #212-
970-000-976-008 and to Authorize Signing of the Contract Pending Attorney 
Approval. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
BOARD MEMBER UPDATES 
 
Trustee Eldridge thanked Debbie Graham and Tammie Keen for their service. He 
said he thanked Trustee Ross-Williams for her time on the Board and also on the 
Park Commission. He said she is passionate about the township and he said he 
appreciated that. He thanked Clerk Lovejoy Roe for all her many years of service. 
He said the township is better off because of the time she spent and the 
improvements she has made in many areas. He said he has known Larry and his 
family since he was a little kid. He said Larry was here when he came on board and 
he said he appreciated everything he has done. 
 
Trustee Wilson stated it was his pleasure in working with Treasurer Doe, Clerk 
Lovejoy Roe, and Trustee Ross-Williams over the past four years. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that Trustee Ross-Williams sent the following to read 
into the record. 
 

• In my soon to be former elected role I’ve enjoyed serving with most of the 
colleagues on this body never the less there’s some issues which deserve 
highlighting in the hopes that a future body would move forward crafting 
solutions for the public at large. 1) Is to reform to the Township Election 
Commission by adoption of election commission policies specifically the 
setting of election commission policy that align state law then guidelines for 
full transparency of the body, the chair of the election commission should 
not be the Clerk. In those future policies as the election commission or 
committee two additional members provide oversight of the clerk duties as 
related to elections within our community and one of whom should be the 
bodys’ chair 2) Ypsilanti Township election committee review approval of 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 10 
 

candidates seeking public office, paperwork reviewed by the election 
committee at a frequency rate determined by the public and the board for 
the committee reviewing and approving all candidates paperwork seeking 
public office prior to forwarding the paperwork to the County Clerks’ office. 
This will allow for the proper check and balances necessary to ensure no 
township resident is impeded in filing for office 3) immediate adoption of a 
strong conflicts of interest and ethics policy for the Township Board of 
Trustees and Elected, Appointed Body, a strong ethic and conflict policy for 
Township Board of Trustees in a municipality this was a goal of hers prior to 
leaving the board unfortunately actions impeded the process therefore it is 
imperative that the next body of Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
review, draft, debate, and adopt strong standard for all elected and 
appointed officials who serve the people of Ypsilanti Township. Pursued 
power being all encompassing is a grave error of any official of legislature 
oversight they should be able to be held accountable to the citizens at large 
the only way outside of elections are recall this can be done by citizens or by 
policy which is an ethics and conflict of interest disclosure policy. In closing I 
do appreciate each township resident who I have been able to serve in my 9 
½ years in the Park Commission and as a Township Trustee. As our Township 
continues to grow while adopting local measures to mitigate the covid 
pandemic. Be well, be safe, and accolades to all. Monica Ross-Williams 

 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated this glorious ride started over 32 years ago in 1988. She 
said she was a young mother with a 2 year old and a new 2 month old daughter. 
She said she was blessed with 5 children who have found their soulmates and so 
she has 10 children and soon they will have 10 grandbabies with her youngest 
expecting in April. She said during all of this, all of us have been through the 
sorrows of losing lost loved ones and for her she said it was her three greatest 
defenders and supporters, Mom, Father, and older brother. She said many of you 
have done the same lost your mothers while you were here. She said we have lived 
a lot together and loved a lot together, and hurt a lot together. She said she has 
been blessed, she gained more friends than she had lost. She said she had the 
greatest honor to serve others, our residents in Ypsilanti Township. She said it is a 
gift and a blessing the service that has been bestowed upon each of us and to 
those in the future she said she wished them the best. She said to go home each 
day even if it was to get someone’s trash picked up or helped them get through 
their unemployment or stuff that was out of your statutory duties, to be able to 
help them every day and to go home knowing that you did that is a gift you take 
with you every day and it’s not measureable. She said she is grateful that God 
brought two, skilled, professional, amazing women to serve beside her as her 
Deputy Clerk, Nancy Wyrybkowski and Lisa Stanfield and of course my calming, 
steady Deputy of Elections, who helped Supervisor Stumbo when she was Clerk, 
Angie Robinson.  She said she had the task of teaching a newly elected Clerk about 
elections and election law which she said she knew nothing about except how to 
vote. She said she said she would always be grateful for these three women who 
will be her friends for life. She said she has learned from all the boards and she said 
she has learned from all of them and from all of you, and she said she was grateful 
for it. She said we has learned that regardless who sits in these seats it is truly the 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 11 
 
employees who make everything happen as they deliver the services daily to our 
residents. She said please know that all the work of the employees goes on before 
you and it speaks for you and we get people who send us messages and emails all 
the time saying how grateful they are whether it is for Carly or Shawna or someone 
in Assessing so it’s great that our employees do such a great job for all of us and 
serve our residents. She said she was grateful for being able to work with this 
amazing team all these years. She said as you know my philosophy is management 
is too important to leave to management and the Township is always better ran 
when all of us in leadership recognize employees and she said she thinks she tries 
to do that and keep them to be a part of the decision making for the best outcome. 
She said we should always ask ourselves is everyone at that table that will be 
impacted by our decision. She said she thinks they have tried to do that and she 
would encourage the next board to do that. She said it serves the organizations, 
they become better when they listen and include the staff who have so much to 
offer and they are directly impacted by all of our decisions. She said she wanted to 
thank those who sacrificed the most over the years, her family. She said she could 
not have served without the love, respect, and support of her truly patient and 
wonderful husband which sometimes she said she doesn’t know why he’s still 
married to her but Rick Roe you are wonderful she thanked him for everything and 
said he is her life, she thanked her five beautiful children and their spouses who 
have given up so much and she said they have always supported her even though 
she was late and missed dinner. She said they have become passionate adults and 
have fought for her. She said they hurt when she did and they triumphed when she 
did and she said they have all been in it together. She said to each of you I love you 
dearly. She said last but not least is her entire staff, these last years in the Clerks’ 
Office with Janis Riley, Ruby Walker, Angela Robinson, and Lisa Stanfield. She said 
they have taught her so much but first is the joy that comes when you serve 
together, you take care of our residents and you do it with Christ in your heart. She 
said our work together has been nothing short of miraculous that I have a team 
with Christ at the head of it that has made the work so perfect and easier to take 
when we have a common goal and purpose and she said that is to take care of each 
other and to take care of the residents. She said her wish for the Township is to all 
keep the first commandment To Love One Another and she said if we can all do 
that then the temptations that take us in other directions will melt away and we 
can get on with, as several residents shared writing during the election time that 
we are doing Gods’ work of serving others and called us angels. She said I don’t 
believe myself or my staff to be angels but she said it was nice when our residents 
said the election work was Gods’ work and referred to my staff as angels in cards 
that we received. She said my God Bless Our Country, Our Township and Each of 
You. She said she thanked everyone for all that they have done over the years and 
she said she would miss you all. 
 
Treasurer Doe said it would be short since he has always been short. He said about 
22 years ago he got a call from Brenda Stumbo asking him if you would like to be 
an appointed Trustee and he said he thought about it and said yes. He said low and 
behold it changed to be an appointed Treasurer. He said he thanked the Board of 
1998, Jean Hall Currie, Dee Sizemore, Bill Gagnon, Ruth Ann Jamnick, Karen Lovejoy 
Roe, and Brenda Stumbo for supporting me and allowing me this great opportunity 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 12 
 
to be the Treasurer. He said he wanted to thank the whole community for 
supporting him through five elections. He said it was a great honor to be here 
twenty two years. He said in short he has grown to have some great friends, Doug. 
He said he never knew Doug real well of course we did hang out years before this 
all happened, shame on us, but just to everybody thank you. He said and especially, 
just as Karen said, he thanked his wife to put up with him though out all this time. 
He said it has given him an opportunity to learn so much – Thank You. He thanked 
the residents and he thanked the Board and said goodnight. 
  
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Adjourn. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:43PM  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



- 1 -

WHEREAS the Township Supervisor has prepared and submitted to the Township Board
the proposed budgets for calendar year 2021; and

WHEREAS the Township Board has advertised the tentative millage rates in the Washtenaw
Legal News and held the public hearing on November 17, 2020 on the budget and the tentative
millage rates pursuant to Section 16 of the Uniform Budgeting Accounting Act (Truth in Budgeting); 
and

WHEREAS the Township Board has reviewed the proposed tax rates and budgets,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees
adopts the 2021 Fiscal Year Budget by cost center, as follows:

Expenditures:

General Fund - Fund 101

101 Township Board 142,467$                
137 Due Process 417,755                  
171 Supervisor 296,498                  
201 Accounting 362,227                  
202 Independent Auditing 35,500                    
209 Assessing 454,249                  
210 Legal Services 250,000                  
215 Clerk 617,776                  
227 Human Resources 327,163                  
247 Board of Review 3,083                      
253 Treasurer 408,829                  
265 Building Operations 617,747                  
266 Computer Support 801,665                  
267 General Services 165,900                  
371 Community Development 286,029                  
400 Planning Commission 8,560                      
410 Zoning Board of Appeals 3,374                      
446 Highways and Streets 397,795                  
728 Economic Development 122,964                  
774 RSD Park and Grounds 712,106                  
780 RSD Storm Water Management 28,000                    
851 Fringes and Insurance 10,050                    
950 Community Stabilization 970,000                  
956 Other Functions 799,142                  
999 Other Financing Uses 737,626                  

Total General Fund Expenditure by Department: 8,976,505$             

Fire Department - Fund 206
206 Fire Department 4,028,798$             
220 Civil Service Commission 14,700                    
852 Pension and Insurance 1,872,010               
970 Capital Outlay 500,000                  
975 Federal Grant Department -                          

Total Fire Department Fund by Department Total: 6,415,508$             

Parks Commission - Fund 208 Total: 8,822$                    

Bike Path, Sidewalk, Recreation, Roads, Operations - Fund 212
212 BSRII-Operations 779,840$                
970 Capital Outlay 0
991 Debt Service 630,000                  

Total BSR II Fund by Department Total: 1,409,840$             

Environmental Services  - Fund 226 Total: 3,209,489$             

Recreation - Fund 230 Total: 786,290$                

14B Court - Fund 236 Total: 1,708,333$             

2021 Fiscal Year Budget
Charter Township of Ypsilanti

Resolution No. 2020-26



- 2 -

Housing & Business Inspection - Fund 248 Total: -$                        

Building Department - Fund 249 Total: 772,744$                

Local Development Finance Authority - Fund 250 Total: 78,572$                  

Hydro Station - Fund 252 Total: 426,060$                

Law Enforcement - Fund 266
301 Sheriff Services 7,696,543$             
304 Ordinance 839,538                  

Total Law Enforcement Fund by Department Total: 8,536,081$             

Debt 2006 Bond - Fund 398 Total: 233,410$                

Golf Course - Fund 584 Total: 811,700$                

Compost - Fund 590 Total: 654,174$                

Motor Pool - Fund 595 Total: 277,784$                

Nuisance Abatement - Fund 893 Total: 47,027$                  

Grand Total: 34,352,339$           

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the revenues, transfers in and appropriations of prior year
fund balances are estimated as follows:

Revenues:

Revenues 8,660,433$             
Transfer-in 181,865                  
Appropriation of prior year fund balance 134,207                  

General Fund - 101 Total: 8,976,505$             

Revenues 6,897,696$             
Transfer-in -                          
Appropriation of prior year fund balance -                          

Fire Department Fund - 206 Total: 6,897,696$             

Revenues 6,300$                    
Transfer-in -                          
Appropriation of prior year fund balance 2,522                      

Parks Commission Fund - 208 Total: 8,822$                    

Revenues 1,394,583$             
Transfer-in 315,000                  
Appropriation of prior year fund balance -                          

Bike Path, Sidewalk, Recreation, Roads, Operations - 212 Total: 1,709,583$             

Revenues 2,970,861$             
Transfer-in -                          
Appropriation of prior year fund balance 238,628                  

Environmental Services Fund - 226 Total: 3,209,489$             

Revenues 303,400$                
Transfer-in 482,890                  
Appropriation of prior year fund balance -                          

Recreation Fund - 230 Total: 786,290$                

Revenues 1,325,224$             
Transfer-in 383,109                  
Appropriation of prior year fund balance -                          

14B Court - 236 Total: 1,708,333$             



- 3 -

Revenues -$                        
Transfer-in -                          
Appropriation of prior year fund balance -                          

Building Rental Inspection Fund - 248 Total: -$                        

Revenues 760,000$                
Transfer-in -                          
Appropriation of prior year fund balance 12,744                    

Building Department Fund - 249 Total: 772,744$                

Revenues 78,587$                  
Transfer-in -                          
Appropriation of prior year fund balance -                          

Local Development Finance Authority Fund - 250 Total: 78,587$                  

Revenues 440,000$                
Transfer-in -                          
Appropriation of prior year fund balance -                          

Hydro Station Fund - 252 Total: 440,000$                

Revenues 8,513,806$             
Transfer-in -                          
Appropriation of prior year fund balance 22,275                    

Law Enforcement Fund- 266 Total: 8,536,081$             

Revenues -$                        
Transfer-in 118,089                  
Appropriation of prior year fund balance 115,321                  

Debt 2006 Bond Fund - Fund 398 Total: 233,410$                

Revenues 627,050$                
Transfer-in 184,650                  
Appropriation of prior year fund balance -                          

Golf Course Fund - 584 Total: 811,700$                

Revenues 548,450$                
Transfer-in -                          
Appropriation of prior year fund balance 105,724                  

Compost Site Fund - 590 Total: 654,174$                

Revenues 239,086$                
Transfer-in -                          
Appropriation of prior year fund balance 38,698                    

Motorpool Fund - 595 Total: 277,784$                

Revenues 24,800$                  
Transfer-in -                          
Appropriation of prior year fund balance 22,227                    

Nuisance Abatement Fund - 893 Total: 47,027$                  

Grand Total: 35,148,225$           



- 4 -

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Township Supervisor is authorized to approve transfers
of budgetary funds within a cost center in consultation with the effected Department Director
and/or the Accounting Director; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that increases to fund budgets must be authorized by the
Township Board; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following property tax revenues and tax rates be
authorized and that the Township Treasurer is ordered to levy such funds and rates, and collect
and deposit to the various specific uses and funds as required by ordinance or resolution;

Levied Property Tax Revenues and Rates:

Operating Rate Revenue
General 1.0035 1,426,878$             *
Fire Department 3.0563 4,345,756$             *
Fire Capital 0.4935 701,708$                *
Solid Waste 2.1075 2,996,656$             *
Law Enforcement 5.8192 8,274,326$             *
Bike Path, Sidewalk, Recreation, Roads, Operation 0.9837 1,398,724$             *

     Operating Total: 13.4637 19,144,048$           
Debt
Fire Pension 1.3300 1,891,128$             *

     Debt Total: 1.3300 1,891,128$             

     Grand Total: 14.7937 21,035,175$           *

* Amount calculated using taxable value minus Renaissance Zone. This figure does not include any adjustments.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Township will levy the 1% Tax Administration fee on
property taxes collected by the Township Treasurer on behalf of other governmental units, as
permitted by State Law.

 
 

I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of 
Washtenaw, State of Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and 
exact copy of Resolution No. 2020-26 approved by the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on November 
17, 2020.

Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk                                                                                                     
Charter Township of Ypsilanti









































































































CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2020 BUDGET AMENDMENT #14 

November 17, 2020

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $10,134.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $4,780.00

Net Revenues $4,780.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - PTO & Sick 101-201-000-708.004 $4,440.00
FICA 101-201-000-715.000 $340.00

Net Expenditures $4,780.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $2,933.00

Net Revenues $2,933.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - PTO & Sick 101-209-000-708.004 $2,725.00
FICA 101-209-000-715.000 $208.00

Net Expenditures $2,933.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $1,522.00

Net Revenues $1,522.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - PTO & Sick 101-227-000-708.004 $1,414.00
FICA 101-227-000-715.000 $108.00

Net Expenditures $1,522.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $899.00

Net Revenues $899.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - PTO & Sick 101-266-000-708.004 $515.00
FICA 101-266-000-715.000 $384.00

Net Expenditures $899.00

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request of 100  hours to be paid at 75%.  This will be funded by an 
Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request of 209  hours to be paid at 75%.  This will be funded by an 
Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request of 56  hours to be paid at 75%.  This will be funded by an 
Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request hours to be paid at 75%.  This will be funded by an 
Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 2



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2020 BUDGET AMENDMENT #14 

November 17, 2020

212 - BIKE, SIDEWALK, REC, ROADS GENERAL FUND (BSRII) Total Increase $3,370.00

Revenues: Art Serafinski Scholarship Fund 212-000-000-675.025 $3,370.00

Net Revenues $3,370.00

Expenditures: Art Serafinski Scholarship Program 212-212-740.700 $3,370.00

Net Expenditures $3,370.00

252 - HYDRO STATION FUND Total Increase $6,620.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 252-000-000-699.000 $6,620.00

Net Revenues $6,620.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - PTO & Sick 252-252-000-708.004 $6,149.00
FICA 252-252-000-715.000 $471.00

Net Expenditures $6,620.00

893 - NUISANCE ABATEMENT FUND $8,000.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 893-000-000-699.000 $8,000.00

Net Revenues $8,000.00

Expenditures: Blight Enforcement Costs 893-893-000-806.001 $5,000.00
Noxious Weed Enforcement 893-893-000-806.003 $3,000.00

Net Expenditures $8,000.00

Request to increase the budget for clean up and mowing of blighted properties. We have experienced above 
normal clean up costs in the area that may be attributed to the current pandemic.  Property owners will be 
invoiced for the services performed. This will initially be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance. 

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request of 272.7  hours to be paid at 75%.  This will be funded by an 
Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to budget for the Art Serafinski Scholarship Fund, which will be used for scholarships for children at the 
Recreation Center.  These funds will be restricted for this specific use and transferred to the Recreation Fund as 
requested by the Recreation Director. An initial fund raiser was held at the Green Oaks Golf Course and brought in 
$6,470. Other donations received to date are $4,346. The cost to the Golf Course for the outing was $3,370.  This 
will be funded by funds received in the Art Serafinski Scholarship Fund.

2 of 2



Motion to Amend the 2020 Budget (#14)  

 

 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $10,134 to $10,400,941 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

 Move to increase the BSRII Fund budget by $3,370 to $2,419,087 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Hydro Station budget by $6,620 to $565,586 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Nuisance Abatement Fund budget by $8,000 to $56,500 and 

approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 

 

 











 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 

 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 

From: Mike Hoffmeister, Residential Services Director 

Date: November 23, 2020 

Subject:  Request Authorization to approve the Community Center Flooring subrecipient 

agreement with Washtenaw County 

The Residential Services Department is requesting authorization to approve the Community 
Center Flooring subrecipient agreement amendment with Washtenaw County. 

The Township Board of Trustees previously approved a subrecipient agreement for this project.  

Since then, township staff received an under-budget bid for the Community Center Flooring 

project.  Because of that bid, it has freed up approximately $70,000 in CDBG funding.  This 

amendment is allowing us to utilize the additional CDBG funds for the construction engineering 

services provided by Spicer Group ($7,300) as well as it extends this agreement construction 

deadline to May 1, 2021. 

Mike Hoffmeister 

Residential Services Director 

mhoffmeister@ytown.org 

734-544-3515

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
HEATHER JARREL ROE 

Treasurer 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

Trustees 
DEBBIE SWANSON 
JOHN P. NEWMAN II 
GLORIA PETERSON 
JIMMIE WILSON JR. 

Residential Services 
Department 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone: (734) 484-0073 

ytown.org 

mailto:mhoffmeister@ytown.org


 

 

 

 

 

415 W. Michigan Avenue 734.544.6748 (P) 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197  734.544.6749 (F) 
 

www.ewashtenaw.org/oced facebook.com/washtenawoced 

twitter@WashtenawOCED www.opportunitywashtenaw.org 
Collaborative solutions for a promising future 

 

November 13, 2020        CR #52282 

 

Supervisor Brenda Stumbo 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
 

Dear Supervisor Stumbo, 

 

Washtenaw County wishes to amend the contract with Charter Township of Ypsilanti for the Ypsilanti 
Township Community Center Flooring project. Corporation Counsel has indicated that this amendment 
could be accomplished by a letter signed by both of us. If this amendment is agreeable to you, please 
sign and return all copies of this letter. You will receive an executed copy of this letter upon completion. 
 

Accordingly, I hereby amend the Agreement for Subaward of Federal Financial Assistance between 
Washtenaw County and Charter Township of Ypsilanti dated March 4, 2020 and CR# 52282 as follows: 

 

Amend ARTICLE II – SCOPE OF SERVICES as follows:  

The Subrecipient will agree to use Washtenaw Urban County 2017 and 2019 CDBG funds for the eligible 
construction costs associated with the Ypsilanti Township Community Center flooring project located at 
2025 E. Clark in the Charter Township of Ypsilanti. Project involves installation of approximately 6,525 
square feet of new floor tiles where the existing flooring is in poor condition and poses safety concerns. 
The contract will be paid for with 2017 and 2019 Urban County CDBG funding, not to exceed One 
Hundred Fifty-Two Thousand Two Hundred Dollars and Zero Cents ($152,200.00), in accordance with 
the budget in Attachment B.  

Amend ARTICLE V – TERM as follows: 

This contract begins on the date of this agreement and ends on May 1, 2021, with an option to extend 
an additional 3 months.  No costs eligible under this agreement shall be incurred by the Subrecipient 
before or after these dates, except with prior written approval of the County. 

 
Amend ATTACHMENT A – SCOPE AND LOCATION OF SERVICES & PROJECT TIMELINE as follows: 
WASHTENAW COUNTY will contract with the TOWNSHIP for the eligible construction costs associated 

with the Ypsilanti Township Community Center flooring project located at 2025 E. Clark in the Charter 

Township of Ypsilanti. Project involves installation of approximately 6,525 square feet of new floor tiles 

where the existing flooring is in poor condition and poses safety concerns. These activities will be paid 

for with 2017 and 2019 CDBG funding in accordance with the budget in Attachment B.

http://www.ewashtenaw.org/oced


 

 

PROJECT TIMELINE: 
A competitive request for proposals will be issued, to culminate in the selection of a contractor to 
perform the Ypsilanti Township Community Center flooring replacement project. It is anticipated 
that the Township will award a bid in Fall 2020 for construction to occur January - February 2021 
during a scheduled facility closure.   
 

Activity Deadline 

Bid Opening  October 28, 2020 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti will award contract to most responsible 

and responsive bidder. 

November 2020 

Pre-Construction meeting  By Dec. 4, 2020 

Contractor and Township to complete Section 3 Plan; contractor to 

submit all required CDBG paperwork. 

By Jan. 8, 2021 

Contractor will begin construction. January 18, 2021 

Office of Community Development will perform Davis-Bacon Interviews. Jan. 18 – Feb.12, 2021 

Contractor will complete construction.  February 12, 2021 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti will submit request for reimbursement 

from Washtenaw County OCED, along with accompanying proof of 

payment, original Davis-Bacon payroll forms, and Section 3 Summary 

Report. 

By March 12, 2021 

Project Completion Date: 3/31/2021 

 

       Amend ATTACHMENT B – PROJECT BUDGET as follows: 
  
SUMMARY OF TERMS:  The COUNTY agrees to pay to or on behalf of the TOWNSHIP an amount not to 
exceed One Hundred Fifty-Two Thousand Two Hundred Dollars and Zero Cents ($152,200.00) in 2017 
and 2019 CDBG Funds according to the budget on the following page: 



 

 

 
PROJECT BUDGET: 

Ypsilanti Township Community Center Flooring Project  
Construction & CE Budget 

REVENUE SOURCE(S): TOTAL 

Grant Amounts  
CDBG (2017) – Allocation  

 
$29,659.00 

Grant Amounts  
CDBG (2019) – Priority Project Award  

 
$61,898.00 

Grant Amounts  
CDBG (2019) – Allocation  

 
$60,643.00 

Other Support (In-Kind)   

Status of Funds   

Total  Revenues $152,200.00 

 

PROGRAM EXPENSES TOTAL 

Personnel, Taxes & Fringe Benefits  

Consultant & Contractual Fees  
7,300.00 

Other – construction $144,900.00 

Total Expenditures $152,200.00 

 

All other terms and conditions remain the same as in the original contract. 

ATTEST:      WASHTENAW COUNTY (Pass-Through Entity) 

 

               __         

Lawrence Kestenbaum                DATE  Gregory Dill    DATE 
County Clerk/Register     County Administrator 
           

APPROVED FOR CONTENT:    CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI (Subrecipient) 

 

                                                                   

Teresa Gillotti  DATE    Brenda Stumbo    DATE 
OCED Director      Supervisor  

 
 
Original:  Clerk  

        Contractor 
cc:  Department 

               Purchasing 









































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 

 

From:   Mike Hoffmeister, Residential Services Director 

 

Date:    November 23, 2020 

 

Subject:  Request Authorization to approve the Schooner Cove subrecipient agreement 

amendment with Washtenaw County 

 

The Residential Services Department is requesting authorization to approve the Schooner Cove 

subrecipient agreement with Washtenaw County. 

 

The Township Board of Trustees previously approved a Subrecipient agreement amendment at the 

September 15, 2020 meeting.  Since then, township staff received an under-budget bid for the 

Community Center Flooring project.  Because of that bid, it has freed up $70,137 in CDBG 

funding.  This amendment is re-aligning the funds in order to cover the previously approved 

Township funds ($22,037) allocated to complete construction of the Schooner Cove project as well 

as the Construction Engineering Services ($24,577) provided by OHM. 

 

Mike Hoffmeister 

Residential Services Director 

mhoffmeister@ytown.org 

734-544-3515 

Residential Services 
Department 

 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone: (734) 484-0073 

 
ytown.org 

 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
HEATHER JARREL ROE 

Treasurer 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

Trustees 
DEBBIE SWANSON 
JOHN P. NEWMAN II 
GLORIA PETERSON 
JIMMIE WILSON JR. 

mailto:mhoffmeister@ytown.org


 

 

 

 

 

415 W. Michigan Avenue 734.544.6748 (P) 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197  734.544.6749 (F) 
 

www.washtenaw.org/oced facebook.com/washtenawoced 

twitter@WashtenawOCED www.opportunitywashtenaw.org 
Collaborative solutions for a promising future 

 

November 13, 2020        CR #52674-1 

 

Supervisor Brenda Stumbo 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
 

Dear Supervisor Stumbo, 

 

Washtenaw County wishes to amend the contract with Charter Township of Ypsilanti for the Schooner 
Cove Bus Stop project. Corporation Counsel has indicated that this amendment could be accomplished 
by a letter signed by both of us. If this amendment is agreeable to you, please sign and return all copies 
of this letter. You will receive an executed copy of this letter upon completion. 
 

Accordingly, I hereby amend the Agreement for Subaward of Federal Financial Assistance between 
Washtenaw County and Charter Township of Ypsilanti dated October 29, 2020 and CR# 52674 as follows: 

 

Amend ARTICLE II – SCOPE OF SERVICES as follows:  

The Subrecipient will agree to use Washtenaw Urban County 2019 and 2020 CDBG funds for the eligible 
costs of construction and construction engineering services for a bus stop enhancement project at 
Schooner Cove Boulevard and S. Huron River Drive in the Charter Township of Ypsilanti. Project includes a 
bus bay (pull out) at the northeast corner of Schooner Cove Boulevard and S. Huron River Drive, 
improvements to existing storm water management system and adjacent asphalt pathway, and addition of a 
pedestrian crosswalk to access the bus stop from the south side of Huron River Drive. The contract will be 
paid for with 2019 and 2020 Urban County CDBG funding, not to exceed Two Hundred and 
Seven Thousand and Seventy-Seven Dollars and Zero Cents ($207,077.00), in accordance with the budget in 
Attachment B.  

       Amend ATTACHMENT B – PROJECT BUDGET as follows: 
  
SUMMARY OF TERMS:  The COUNTY agrees to pay to or on behalf of the TOWNSHIP an amount not to 
exceed Two Hundred and Seven Thousand and Seventy-Seven Dollars and Zero Cents ($207,077.00) in 
2019 and 2020 CDBG Funds according to the budget on the following page: 

  

http://www.ewashtenaw.org/oced


 

 

PROJECT BUDGET: 

Schooner Cove Bus Stop Improvements Project  
Construction Budget 

REVENUE SOURCE(S): TOTAL 

Grant Amounts  
CDBG (2019) – Allocation  

 
$46,614.00 

Grant Amounts  
CDBG (2020) – Allocation  

 
$160,463.00 

Other Support (In-Kind)   

Status of Funds   

Total Revenues $207,077.00 

 

PROGRAM EXPENSES TOTAL 

Personnel, Taxes & Fringe Benefits  

Consultant & Contractual Fees  
$24,577.00 

Other – construction $182,500.00 

Total Expenditures $207,077.00 

 

All other terms and conditions remain the same as in the original contract. 

ATTEST:      WASHTENAW COUNTY (Pass-Through Entity) 

 

               __         

Lawrence Kestenbaum                DATE  Gregory Dill    DATE 
County Clerk/Register     County Administrator 
           

APPROVED FOR CONTENT:    CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI (Subrecipient) 

 

                                                                   

Teresa Gillotti  DATE    Brenda Stumbo    DATE 
OCED Director      Supervisor  

 
 
Original:  Clerk  

        Contractor 
cc:  Department 

               Purchasing 
 

 













































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
TO:  Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk       
  Lisa Stanfield, Deputy Clerk 
 
FROM: Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor 
 
DATE: November 24, 2020 
 
RE:  Boards and Commissions 
 
 
Please place on the December 1, 2020 Board Meeting Agenda the 
recommendations for the 2021 Boards and Commissions. 
 
If you have any questions please let me know. 
 
dg 
 
 
 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
SUPERVISORS OFFICE 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

         Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
         Phone:  (734) 481.0617 
         Fax:  (734)484.0002 
         www.ytown.org 

  

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

Treasurer 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

Trustees 
JOHN P. NEWMAN II 
GLORIA PETERSON 
DEBBIE SWANSON 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 
 

 

http://www.ytown.org/


CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
2021 Board and Commissions Appointments and Re-Appointments 
 

Resolution No. 2020-34 
 
 
 

REAPPOINTMENTS 
 

Board of Review         Expiration Date 
Craven, Brenda         12/31/2022   
Lathion, Marsha         12/31/2022 
Stevenson, Morley         12/31/2022 
 
Civil Service Commission       Expiration Date 
Robinson, Hazelette        12/31/2022 
 
Construction Board of Appeals       Expiration Date 
Foley, Jesse          12/31/2022 
McComb, Alan         12/31/2022 
 
Huron River Watershed Council      Expiration Date 
Wilson, Jimmie         11/20/2024 

 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA)    Expiration Date 

 Neel, Javonna         12/31/2022   
       
Planning Commission        Expiration Date 
Richie, Sally          12/31/2023 
Sinkule, Bill          12/31/2023 
Tawakkul, Muddasar        12/31/2023 
 
Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority (YCUA)    Expiration Date 
Peterson, Gloria         12/31/2023 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals        Expiration Date 
Wilson, Jimmie         12/31/2023 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 

Building Authority         Expiration Date 
Eldridge, Stan         12/31/2026 
Neel, Javonna         12/31/2026 

 
Construction Board of Appeals       Expiration Date 
Denney, Thomas         12/31/2022 
Freeman, Will         12/31/2022 
 
Election Board         Expiration Date 
Newman, John         11/20/2024 
Jarrell Roe, Heather         11/20/2024 
Swanson, Debbie         11/20/2024 
 
Liquor Committee         Expiration Date  
Eldridge, Stan         11/20/2024  
Swanson, Debbie         11/20/2024 
Wilson, Jimmie         11/20/2024 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA)    Expiration Date 

 Eldridge, Stan (Board)        11/20/2024 
Jefferson, Ricky (Cty. Liaison)       12/31/2022 
Jarrell Roe, Heather         11/20/2024 
Stumbo, Brenda         11/20/2024 
 
 



Planning Commission        Expiration Date 
Doe, Larry          12/31/2023 
 
Police and Firefighters Retirement Board     Expiration Date 
Eldridge, Stan         N/A 
 
Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG)   Expiration Date 
O’Connor, Brad (delegate)        11/20/2024 
Jarrell Roe, Heather         11/20/2024  

              
Washtenaw Regional Recycling Management Authority (WRRMA) Expiration Date 
Hoffmeister, Mike (alternate)       Pleasure of Board 
 
Washtenaw Urban Executive Committee/Home Consortium Board Expiration Date 
Stumbo, Brenda (alternate)       11/20/2024 
 
Weed Commissioner        Expiration Date 
Greenwood, Tom         12/31/2022 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals        Expiration Date 
Sternburgh, Garret         12/31/2023 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2020 BUDGET AMENDMENT #15 

December 1, 2020

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $11,208.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $11,208.00

Net Revenues $11,208.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - PTO & Sick 101-253-000-708.004 $10,390.00
FICA 101-253-000-715.000 $818.00

Net Expenditures $11,208.00

206 - FIRE FUND Total Increase $56,126.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 206-000-000-699.000 $56,126.00

Net Revenues $56,126.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - of Retirees 206-206-000-708.005 $12,549.00
Retiree Time Payouts 206-206-000-708.008 $43,577.00

Net Expenditures $56,126.00

212 - BIKE, SIDEWALK, REC, ROADS GENERAL FUND (BSRII) Total Increase $152,200.00

Revenues: Community Dev Block Grant (CDBG) 212-000-000-531.000 $144,900.00
Community Dev Block Grant (CDBG) 212-000-000-531.000 $7,300.00

Net Revenues $152,200.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay - Community Center 212-970-000-976.008 $144,900.00
Capital Outlay - Community Center 212-970-000-976.008 $7,300.00

Net Expenditures $152,200.00

Request to increase budget for retirement payout.  This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund 
Balance.

Request to budget for the Community Center Floor project. The Township has been awarded a CDBG Grant for 
this project. The construction award amount is $144,900 and the engineering oversite award amount is $7,300. 
This will be funded by a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) from a sub award of Federal Financial 
Assistance administer through Washtenaw County.

Request to increase budget for a retirement payout. This retirement includes the payout of accumulated time over 
a period of a year. This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 2



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2020 BUDGET AMENDMENT #15 

December 1, 2020

236 - 14 B DISTRICT COURT FUND $2,790.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 236-000-000-699.000 $1,395.00

Net Revenues $1,395.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - PTO & Sick 236-136-000-708.004 $1,296.00
FICA 236-136-000-715.000 $99.00

Net Expenditures $1,395.00

252 - HYDRO STATION FUND Total Increase $20,000.00

Revenues: Ford Lake Hydro Station 252-000-000-641.003 $20,000.00

Net Revenues $20,000.00

Expenditures: Professional Services 252-252-000-801.000 $20,000.00

Net Expenditures $20,000.00

590 - COMPOST FUND Total Increase $5,901.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 590-000-000-699.000 $5,901.00

Net Revenues $5,901.00

Expenditures: Salaries pay out - PTO 590-590-000-708.004 $5,482.00
FICA 590-590-000-715.000 $419.00

Net Expenditures $5,901.00

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request of 180  hours to be paid at 75%.  This will be funded by an 
Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for additional cost for a consultant to assist with compliance issues related to Part 12 
and Owners Dam Safety. This will be funded by an increase to the Hydro Dam revenues, which are currently 
$30,656 more than budgeted.

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request of 60  hours to be paid at 75%.  This will be funded by an 
Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

2 of 2



Motion to Amend the 2020 Budget (#15)  

 

 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $11,208 to $10,412,149 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

 Move to increase the Fire Fund budget by $56,126 to $6,637,251 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the BSRII Fund budget by $152,200 to $2,571,287 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the 14B District Court Fund budget by $2,790 to $1,784,211 and 

approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Hydro Station budget by $20,000 to $585,586 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Compost Fund budget by $5,901 to $954,758 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

 

 



 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 



Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
         STAN ELDRIDGE 
          HEATHER ROE 
MONICA ROSS-WILLIAMS 
     JIMMIE WILSON, JR.

 
 

 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Michael Saranen, Operation Manager 

DATE: November 23, 2020 

RE: Owners Dam Safety Program Audit Report 
 
In following the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) guidelines and 
the Township’s Owner’s Dam Safety Program a 5 year audit was conducted in 
2020. 
 
William Forsmark P.E., of Barr Engineering was proposed by the Township and 
approved by the FERC to conduct the audit. 
 
The audit consisted of a document review, a site visit of the Hydro Station and 
interviews of the Dam Safety Program members to determine if the licensee is in 
compliance of the regulation and puts dam safety as basis of its practices. 
 
As a small organization, we have a very talented group of staff that make the 
ODSP successful. Without the dedication by the staff and the support of the 
Board we would not have gotten such a great report from the auditor. 
 
Overall, the program is exemplary on how it is outlined, implemented and the 
planning for the future. 
 
Attached is the Auditors Report for your review. The next audit is planned for 
2025. 
 
I am available anytime for questions regarding the Hydro and the Owners Dam 
Safety Program. 
 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Hydro Station  

 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 544.3690 
Fax:  (734) 544.3626 

 
www.ytown.org 

 

http://www.ytown.org/


 

 

Barr Engineering Co. 3005 Boardwalk Street, Suite 100, Ann Arbor, MI  48108   734.922.4400  www.barr.com 

November 20, 2020 

Michael Saranen  
Operations Manager / Chief Dam Safety Coordinator 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti  
7200 South Huron River Drive  
Ypsilanti, MI 48197  

Re: Ford Lake Dam Owners Dam Safety Program Audit (FERC Project No. 5334) 

Dear Mr. Saranen: 

I have completed my external audit of Ford Lake Dam’s Owners Dam Safety Program, as required for the 
project by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). External audits are intended for dam owners 
to continue to improve their dam safety program, help them understand how well their program is 
working, and to identify areas where their dam safety program may need improvement. This external 
audit was competed in general accordance with the FERC’s Guidance for ODSP External Audits 
(5/14/2018).  

Scope and Methodology  
My audit consisted of document review, interviews, and a site visit, including the following activities:  

• review and assessment of key dam safety program documents,  
• interviews with a representative sample of staff with ODSP responsibilities,  
• accompanying dam operations staff in a walk-through of the project site,  
• review of representative training records,  
• review of dam operations and maintenance documentation  
• review of representative dam safety communications,   
• review and assessment of evidence of corporate commitment to dam safety  

A detailed list of these activities is included in Attachment A.  

Audit Findings  
My document review, interviews, and site visit consistently indicate that the Ford Lake Dam ODSP is well 
organized, effectively communicated, broadly understood and has the support of senior management. 
The ODSP seems be very effective in its objective of preparing the organization for a potential emergency.  

The ODSP is an important document, and Ford Lake Dam’s ODSP meets the FERC’s guidelines for ODSPs. 
The ODSP document is updated and reprinted annually. More importantly, the key elements of the ODSP 
are effectively communicated and well known to this involved in dam safety for the project. This was 
borne out consistently in my interviews and discussions with staff.  

Project specific dam safety training is carried out annually, including both ODSP annual training and EAP 
training events.  



Michael Saranen  
 
November 20, 2020 
Page 2 

P:\Ann Arbor\22 MI\81\2281058 Ford Lake Dam General Services\WorkFiles\2020\ODSP external audit\audit letter\Ford Lake Dam 2020 ODSP Audit v 0.1.docx 

The owner has considered succession planning and has taken concrete steps in the last several years to 
provide more redundancy in staffing and to train and inform dam operators in a variety of ways. This 
includes annual dam safety and EAP training, task-specific worksheets to familiarize or refresh staff on 
inspection and monitoring tasks, on-going “story telling” to share operations and dam safety experiences, 
and walking alongside newer staff by their senior staff (Chief Dam Safety Coordinator).  

Conclusions  
The Ford Lake Dam dam safety program is an excellent example of a well designed and executed 
program. The program meets the expectations laid out in the FERC’s ODSP guidance.  

In my experience, Ford Lake Dam should be considered best in class for establishing a strong dam safety 
culture including some great best practices that other organizations could learn from. This includes 
operator training worksheets, regular storytelling to share project history and experiences, and intentional 
plans for dam operator staffing and role redundancy.  

Staff interviews acknowledged healthy concern for dam safety, but consistently (without exception) 
indicated staff are familiar with the dam safety program, understand their role, understand what to do if 
an unusual circumstance is observed, and know who to contact to address a dams safety concern.  

Dam safety communication is carried out in a variety of ways, including daily conversations, daily and 
monthly project inspections, multiple annual training sessions, monthly newsletters, 5-year independent 
consultant safety inspections, and timely topical conversations as issues arise.  

Recommendations  
Even the best of dam safety programs can be improved upon. The following recommendation is made for 
the Ford Lake Dam ODSP:  

• The Ford Lake Dam ODSP is exemplary, in particular in the ways it has been implemented so that 
it is meaningful to all of those with a role in plan. The Charter Township of Ypsilanti should 
continue with the excellent employee training, integration, and succession programs to keep the 
program current, fresh and relevant.  

In addition, the following suggestions were made for potential future program improvements:  

• The dam operators indicated their appreciation for the exposure they have had to adjacent 
hydropower facilities operations (French Landing, Barton and Superior) as part of those facilities’ 
emergency action plan functional exercises, and indicated they would value the opportunity to 
visit, observe and discuss other hydropower facilities and their operations and dam safety 
practices develop to consider different approaches and perspectives and a deeper understanding 
of dam safety. This was a great suggestion, and could be arranged directly with other dam owners 
in the area, or by attending regional or national dam safety organization meetings and facility 
tours, such as Association of State Dam Safety Officials (ASDSO), National Hydropower 
Association (NHA), or Midwest Hydropower User Group (MHUG).  

• In addition to annual ODSP and EAP training sessions, some interviewees suggested encouraging 
more frequent, short discussions or virtual meetings with the broad ODSP team and stakeholders 
to keep the topic fresh and current, and allow for participants who may not make the annual 
meeting to stay engaged.  



Michael Saranen  
 
November 20, 2020 
Page 3 

P:\Ann Arbor\22 MI\81\2281058 Ford Lake Dam General Services\WorkFiles\2020\ODSP external audit\audit letter\Ford Lake Dam 2020 ODSP Audit v 0.1.docx 

This audit letter should be reviewed by the Chief Dam Safety Coordinator and Chief Dam Safety Engineer. 
The Chief Dam Safety Coordinator should prepare a summary report for presentation to the Township 
Supervisor. A copy of the summary along with this audit letter should be submitted to the FERC for their 
review and comment. 

I greatly appreciate the open access and accommodations you have afforded me for this audit. If you have 
any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.  

Sincerely, 

 

William J, Forsmark, PE  
bforsmark@barr.com 
612.325.7347 

Attachment A – Detailed List of ODSP Audit Activities 

 

mailto:bforsmark@barr.com


Attachment A – Detailed List of ODSP External Audit Activities 
  



The following documents and activities were reviewed and accomplished as part of the Owners Dam 
Safety Program external audit.  

Review and assessment of key dam safety program documents,  

• Owner’s Dam Safety Program (March 2020) 
• Emergency Action Plan (2015, with 2019 updates) 
• EAP Functional Exercise (August 2019) 
• EAP Table Top Exercise (August 2019) 
• Standard Technical Information Document (June 2017) 
• Operations Monitoring Plan (September 15, 2004) 
• DSSMP (December 2011, revised June 2017) 
• DSSMR (February 2020) 
• FERC Part 12D independent consultant safety inspection reports (August 2010, November 2015) 
• Prior ODSP External Audit (October 1, 2015) 

Interviews with a representative sample of staff with ODSP responsibilities  

• Michael Saranen, Chief Dam Safety Coordinator (11/4/2020, 11/13/2020) 
• Larry Boggs, Dam Operator (11/13/2020) 
• Mark Medos, Dam Operator (11/13/2020) 
• Dave Hibbs, Chief Dam Safety Engineer (11/13/2020) 
• Mike Hoffmeister, Residential Services (11/16/2020) 
• Angie Verges, Recreation (11/16/2020) 
• Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor (11/17/2020) 

Accompanying dam operations staff in a walk-through of the project site  

On-site discussions with dam operations staff; review of operations records; review and 
discussion of ODSP, EAP, DSSMP, and training materials; and walk-down of site with operations 
staff to observe dam conditions and review dam observation and inspection procedures 
(11/13/2020).  

Representative training records,  

• ODSP Annual Training sign in (9/23/2020) 
• EAP Annual face to face Training (11/22/2019) 

Dam operations and maintenance documentation  

• Daily logs (kept in powerhouse operator’s office) 
• Monthly summaries (kept in powerhouse operator’s office) 
• Maintenance records(kept in powerhouse operator’s office) 

Representative dam safety communications,   

• Monthly reports to Board of Trustees (October 2019 through October 2020) 

Evidence of corporate commitment to dam safety 

• Resolution 2020-03, Owners Dam Safety Program, approved by Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees on January 21, 2020 



BOARD MEMBER UPDATES 


	December 1, 2020
	Regular Meeting Agenda
	Public Hearing Res. 2020-33 Lathers St. Streetlight Special Assessment District 
	Public Comments
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes of the November 17, 2020 Regular Meeting
	Statements and Checks December 1, 2020

	Attorney Report
	New Business
	Request to Approve Amendment to SubAward Agreement for Community Center Flooring
	Request to Approve Amendment to SubAward Agreement for Schooner Cove Bus Stop
	Resolution 2020-34, 2021 Boards and Commissions
	Budget Amendment #15

	Other Business
	Discussion on Owners Dam Safety Program Audit Report

	Board Member Updates



